



BYLAWS

SHERWOOD PARK FISH AND GAME ASSOCIATION



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

Article 1

Defining and Interpreting the Bylaws

- 1.1 **Definitions**
In these Bylaws unless the context otherwise requires:
- 1.1.1 "Act" means the Societies R.S.A. 1980 Chapter S-18 as amended or any statute substituted for It.
- 1.1.2 "Board of Directors or "Board" means the Board of Directors and includes the Officers from time to time of the Association.
- 1.1.3 "Dependent" includes a spouse/partner and son or daughter under eighteen (18) years of age of a Range or Regular member.
- 1.1.4 "Director" means a member of the Board of Directors and includes Officers.
- 1.1.5 "Officers" means the President, the First Vice President, the Second Vice President, the immediate Past President, the Secretary, the Treasurer and/or Secretary-Treasurer of the Association.
- 1.1.6 "Member" means a member of the Association in accordance with Article 2.1.
- 1.1.7 "General Meeting" means the General Meetings as specified in Article 3.
- 1.1.8 "Special Resolution" means:
- 1.1.8.1 a resolution passed at a Financial Meeting, Special General Meeting or Annual Election meeting of the membership of this Association. There must be twenty-one (21) days' notice for this meeting. The notice must state the proposed resolution. There must be approval by a vote of 75% of the voting members in attendance.
- 1.1.9 "Voting member" means a member entitled to vote at the meetings of the Association.
- 1.1.10 "Notice" means any form of recognized mass communication method (mail, email, newsletter, text)
- 1.2 **Interpretation**
The following rules of interpretation must be applied in interpreting these Bylaws.
- 1.2.1 **Singular and Plural:**
Words indicating the singular number also include the plural and visa-versa.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

- 1.2.2 Association:
Words indicating persons also include association.
- 1.2.3 Headings:
Headings are for convenience only. They do not affect the interpretation of the Bylaws.
- 1.2.4 Liberal Interpretation:
These Bylaws must be interpreted broadly and generously.

Article 2 **Memberships**

- 2.1 **Classification of Members:**
There are nine (9) categories of members:
- a) Regular Membership
 - b) Family Regular Membership
 - c) Range Membership
 - d) Family Range Membership
 - e) Youth Membership
 - f) Life Membership
 - g) Honorary Membership
 - h) Limited Membership
 - i) Corporate Membership

- 2.1.1 **Regular Membership**
A Regular Member is allowed access to the Association's recreational facilities, but shall not be allowed to use the firearm range facilities. Regular Members are entitled to one vote at all General Meetings of the Association and shall pay an annual membership fee as established in Article 2.3.2.

- 2.1.2 **Family Regular Membership**
A Family Regular Member is allowed access to the Association's recreational facilities, but shall not be allowed to use the firearm facilities. A Family Regular Membership shall constitute one Regular Membership, a spouse or partner, and all dependent children under eighteen (18) years of age. The Regular Member, the spouse or partner, and all dependent children sixteen (16) years and older are each entitled to one vote at all General Meetings of the Association and shall pay an annual membership fee as established in Article 2.3.2.

- 2.1.3 **Range Membership**
A Range Member shall have access to all the Association's recreational facilities and the firearm range facilities. Range Members are entitled to one vote at all General Meetings of the Association and shall pay an annual membership fee as established in Article 2.3.2.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

- 2.1.4 **Family Range Membership**
A Family Range Member shall have access to all the Association's recreational facilities and the firearm range facilities. A Family Range Membership shall constitute one Range Membership, a spouse or partner, and all dependent children under eighteen (18) years of age. The Range Member, the spouse or partner, and all dependent children sixteen (16) years and older are each entitled to one vote at all General Meetings of the Association and shall pay an annual membership fee as established in Article 2.3.2. Refer to Article 2.1.10 regarding the supervision of dependent children using the firearm range facilities.
- 2.1.5 **Youth Membership**
A Youth Membership is available to all young people under eighteen (18) years of age and shall be allowed access to all of the Association's recreational facilities and the firearm range facilities. Youth members sixteen (16) years of age and older are entitled to one vote at all General Meetings of the Association and shall pay an annual membership fee as established in Article 2.3.2. Refer to Article 2.1.10 regarding the supervision of Youth Members using the firearm range facilities.
- 2.1.6 **Life Membership**
Proposed Life Members shall be nominated at an Executive Meeting by the Board of Directors with a minimum of ten (10) Directors present and a 75% vote is required. Life Members shall be entitled to one vote per member at all General Meetings of the Association and will not be assessed membership fees. Life Members and their Dependents will be accorded the same access privileges to the Association's facilities as is accorded Range Members and their Dependents. In the event of a life members death Memberships for Spouses and Dependents continue for 2 years.
- 2.1.7 **Honorary Membership**
Honorary Members shall be appointed by the Board of Directors for the time period specified. An Honorary Member shall not be assessed a membership fee. Honorary Members and their dependents have the same access privileges to the Association's facilities as Range Members and their dependents.
- 2.1.8 **Limited Membership**
A Limited Membership may be issued for specified one-time limited events as approved by the Board of Directors and upon payment of the fee as prescribed by the Board of Directors. A holder of a Limited Membership shall not have any voting rights in the Association.
- 2.1.9 **Corporate Memberships**
Open to Corporate business to provide financial assistance to the association; the fee shall be determined by the executive. Corporate memberships are entitled to one vote and are not permitted use of the facilities.
- 2.1.10 Supervision of Youth Members and Dependent Children Dependent children of a Family Range Member and Youth Members under eighteen (18) years of age shall only have access to the firearm range facilities under the immediate supervision of a Range Member.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

2.2

Admission of Membership

Membership is available to any person who wishes to support the conservation of our fish, wildlife and natural resources and their management of the future and subscribes to the policies, principles, objectives and rules of the Association.

2.2.1

All new Range Members must undergo a range orientation before receiving a membership.

2.3

Membership Fees

2.3.1

Membership Year

The membership year for the Association shall be January 1 to December 31 in a given year.

2.3.2

Setting Membership Fees

The membership fees for each year shall be established by a majority vote of the members present at the Annual Financial Meeting, Annual Election meeting, or Special General Meeting of the Association. Notice of intention to propose changes to membership fees are to be given to members a minimum of twenty-one (21) days prior to the meeting.

2.4

Rights, Privileges and Obligations of Members

2.4.1

Rights and Privileges

A Member shall have the right:

- Of access to the property and facilities as provided by the membership classification.
- To one vote on matters of the Association during General Meetings.
- To become a Member of the Board of Directors if so elected by a majority at the Annual Election Meeting or if appointed by the Board of Directors.
- To receive communications from the Association.
- To inspect the Association's books and records as outlined in Article 5.4.1.

2.4.2

Obligations

To comply with Association's policies.

To comply with Association rules as established by the Board of Directors published documents, and/or posted on the Association's recreational and firearm facilities.

2.4.3

Member in Good Standing

A Member is in good standing when:

- the member has paid membership fees or other required fees to the Association, and
- the member is not suspended as a member as provided for under Article 2.5.

2.4.4

Voting Members

The only members who can vote at a General Meeting of the Association are:

- Members in good standing who are at least sixteen (16) years of age and who hold a current year's membership, and
- Life Members in good standing.
- Honorary members in good standing
- Corporate members in good standing



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

2.4.5

Entitlement and Type of Vote

Votes of members in good standing shall be given in person. Each member shall have only one (1) vote. Prior to any issue being voted on at any meeting of the Association, a majority of members present may determine whether the vote on any issue shall be given by a show of hands or by secret ballot. When a vote is by secret ballot, the Chairperson will appoint Tellers who will distribute, collect and count the ballots. The Secretary shall oversee the count and declare the results of the vote, not the actual number for or against the vote. The Secretary shall destroy the ballots after a motion has been passed to destroy the ballots.

2.4.5.1

Each Candidate may nominate a scrutineer, or the chairman will.

2.4.6

Majority Vote

At all meetings of the Association, every question, other than a Special Resolution, shall be determined by a majority vote of the members present and in good standing.

2.4.7

Tie Vote

When there is a tie vote without the Chairperson's vote, the Chairperson may vote in the affirmative, and such a vote adopts the motion; but if the Chairperson abstains from voting, the motion is lost.

When there is one more in the affirmative than in the negative without the Chairperson's vote, the motion is adopted if the Chairperson abstains; but if the Chairperson votes in the negative, the result is thereby tied, and the motion is lost.

2.4.8

Representation of the Association

Any member may, if appointed by the Board of Directors, represent the Association at any applicable Alberta Fish and Game Association Zone Meeting or Annual Convention, or such other occasion where representation is required.

2.5

Termination of Membership

2.5.1

Procedure for Expulsion of Members and Removal of Directors and Officers

The Board of Directors may, by majority vote, expel any member whose conduct has been determined by the Board to be unsafe, improper, unbecoming, or likely to endanger the reputation of the Association, or who commits a breach of the Bylaws of the Association.

A Director or Officer of the Association may be removed from office after a duly called Executive Meeting with two (2) weeks meeting notice. The motion to remove the Director or Officer must pass with a 75% majority vote of the executive in attendance. The Director or Officer so removed may remain a member of the Association.

No member, Director or Officer shall be expelled unless:

- that individual is given notice of the charge or complaint, and
- that individual is given an opportunity to make representations to the Board of Directors at a special hearing called for the purpose.

A member, Director or Officer has the right to be represented by Legal Counsel at the Board hearing.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

- 2.5.2 **Reinstatement**
The Board of Directors may, by a vote of a majority of the Board, reinstate any member who, after being expelled, applies in writing for reinstatement in the Association and who otherwise meets the requirements of membership under the Bylaws of the Association.
- 2.5.3 **Withdrawal and Refund of Fees**
A member may withdraw from the Association tendering a written resignation to the Secretary of the Association, or cease to be a member through expulsion. the membership fee of such members, or any part thereof, shall not be refunded except as approved by the Board of Directors.
- 2.5.4 The decision of the Board is final.
- 2.6 **Transmission of Membership**
No rights or privileges of any member is transferable to another person. All rights and privileges cease when the member resigns, dies or is expelled from the Association except as in 2.1.6
- 2.7 **Continual Liability for Debts Due**
Although a member ceases to be a member by death, resignation or otherwise, he is liable for any debts owing to the Association at the date ceasing to be a member.
- 2.8 **Limitation on the Liability of Members**
No member is in his individual capacity liable for any debt or liability of the Association.
- 2.9 **Membership Reclassification**
If at any time the classification of members fails to meet the requirements of either the Alberta Fish and Game Association or our insurance policy. the Board of Directors may change the classification to meet such requirements.

Article 3 **Meetings of the Association**

- 3.1 **Types of Meetings:**
A. Annual Financial Meeting
B. Annual Election Meeting
C. General Meetings
D. Special General Meetings
- 3.1.1 **Annual Financial Meeting**
The Annual Financial Meeting of the Association shall be held no later than May 31st each year, at a place to be designated by the Board of Directors. Notice shall be given to each member in good standing at least twenty-one (21) days before the date of the Meeting.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

3.1.2

Annual Election Meeting

Annual Election Meeting of the Association shall be held in the first ten (10) days in the month of December each year. Notice shall be given to each member in good standing at least twenty-one (21) days before the date of the Meeting.

3.1.3

General Meetings

General Meetings of the members of the Association shall be held whenever the Board decides, but there shall not be less than three (3) General Meetings in each calendar year. Notice shall be given to each member in good standing at least twenty-one (21) days before the date of the Meeting.

3.1.4

Special General Meetings

The Board of Directors shall call a Special General Meeting upon receiving a written request, signed by not less than twenty-five (25) members in good standing, sent to the President and the Secretary of the Association. After it has been requested a Special General Meeting shall be held as soon as possible after the Board of Directors has met. Notice shall be given to each member in good standing at least twenty-one (21) days before the date of the Meeting. The business of any Special General Meeting shall be confined to the business specified in the written request.

3.2

Agenda for the Annual Financial Meetings

The Annual Financial Meeting deals with the following matters:

- adopting the Agenda
- adopting the Minutes of the previous Annual Financial Meeting
- reviewing the Financial Statements of the previous year setting out the income, disbursements, assets and liabilities and the Auditors Report and reviewing the current year budget
- appointment of the Auditor or Audit Committee
- considering matters specified in the Meeting Notice.

3.3

Conduct of Meetings

Any member who wishes to place an item for discussion on the Agenda for an Annual Financial Meeting, Annual Election Meeting shall advise the Board of Directors of their request before, or not later than, the Board of Directors Meeting immediately preceding that General Meeting.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

3.4

Rules Applicable to Conduct of Meetings

- The member proposing a motion shall be given the first opportunity to speak to the motion, and an opportunity to make final comment on the motion prior to the vote.
- The seconder of the motion and any other person recognized by the Chairperson can speak to the motion only once.
- Members speaking to a motion shall be limited to three minutes to make their comments.
- An amendment to a motion may:
 - Insert a word or phrase in the main motion;
 - Add a word or phrase at the end of the motion. The amendment may not change the intent of the motion and is limited to one amendment. The amendment will then be voted on. The Chairperson will repeat the main motion as amended. The main motion will then be voted on.
- A motion to table a main motion must be seconded and voted on with no discussion.

3.5

Quorum

For the Annual Financial, Annual Elections, and Special General Meetings, Twenty-five (25) members in good standing shall constitute a quorum at an Annual Financial Meeting, Annual Elections Meeting or at a Special General Meeting.

3.6

Proceedings at Annual Financial meetings, Annual Elections, General and Special General Meetings

3.6.1

Attendance by the Public

Meetings of the Association are open to the public. A majority of the members present may ask any persons who are not members to leave.

3.6.2

Failure to Reach Quorum if required

The President cancels the meetings if a quorum is not present within one hour after the set time. If cancelled, the meeting is rescheduled within thirty (30) days at the same time and place.

3.6.3

Presiding Officer

The President chairs every meeting of the Association. A Vice President chairs in the absence of the President. In the absence of the President and Vice Presidents, a Chairperson may be appointed by the Board of Directors.

3.6.4

Failure to Give Notice of Meeting

No action taken at an Annual Financial Meeting, Annual Election Meeting, or Special General Meeting is deemed invalid due to:

- a) accidental omission to give any notice to a member; or
- b) any member not receiving any notice; or
- c) an error in any notice that does not affect the meeting.

Article 4

The Government of the Association

4.1

Board of Directors



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

4.1.1

Composition of the Board of Directors

- a) President
- b) First Vice President
- c) Second Vice President
- d) Immediate Past President
- e) Treasurer
- f) Secretary
- g) Directors

4.1.2

Elections

The Officers and Directors of the Association, who comprise the Board of Directors, shall be elected at the Annual Election Meeting of the Association. The nominating committee will present their slate of candidates for all positions and take nominations from the floor.

4.1.3

Meetings of the Board of Directors

4.1.3.1

The Board of Directors holds a minimum of eight (8) meetings each year.

4.1.3.2

The President or designate calls the meetings. The President must call a meeting if any two (2) Directors make a request in writing and state the business for the meeting.

4.1.3.3

Three (3) Officers and five (5) Directors shall constitute a quorum at a Board of Directors Meeting.

4.1.3.4

If there is no quorum, the President or designate adjourns the meeting to the following week.

4.1.3.5

Any member may attend a Board Meeting as an observer only or if he/she wishes to bring up a topic, he/she must provide advance notice to the President and Secretary and may speak only on that topic.

4.2

Officers

4.2.1

"Officers" of the Association are the President, the First Vice President, the Second Vice President, the Immediate Past President (who is an Officer ex-officio), the Secretary and the Treasurer, and/or Secretary/Treasurer.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

4.2.2

Powers of Directors

Members of the Board of Directors shall manage the affairs of the Association and shall have the right to vote at all meetings of the Association. Directors shall perform such duties assigned by the Board of Directors that do not contravene the Societies Act or the Bylaws of the Association. These positions are created by requirement and abolished after the term as set out in 4.2.8 if no longer required.

4.2.3

President

The President is a member ex-officio of all Standing or Special Committees, The President shall preside at all Annual Financial Meetings, Special General Meetings, the Annual Election Meetings and the Board of Directors Meetings. The President may, at meetings of the Association, delegate authority as Chairperson to any Member of the Board. The President, however, is responsible for the conduct of all the affairs of the Association.

4.2.4

Past President

The Immediate Past President shall make available to the Association, the benefits of his/her experience and insight into the Association business and affairs and assist by guidance in all Association matters in which he/she is knowledgeable.

4.2.5

Vice Presidents

The First Vice President shall assume the duties of the President in his/her absence. If the First Vice President is unable to act, the Second Vice President shall assume such duties. The First and Second Vice Presidents shall be responsible for such additional projects or duties as may be assigned by the President or the Board of Directors.

4.2.6

Secretary

The Secretary shall keep all books and records of the Association, except those which are the responsibility of some other Officer under the Bylaws.

The Secretary shall arrange for all General or Special Meetings of the Association, shall attend such Meetings and keep accurate minutes thereof and shall perform such other duties as may be required to ensure the smooth and efficient conduct of the Associations business. The Secretary shall submit annual statements to the Registrar of Companies and other official agencies as may be required by law.

The Secretary shall be the custodian of the Common Seal of the Association.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

4.2.7

Treasurer

The Treasurer shall receive and collect all fees and other income of the Association and shall credit such fees and other income to the applicable accounts of the Association in a financial institution designated by the Board of Directors.

The Treasurer shall have custody of all financial records and funds of the Association. All accounts or claims which have been approved by the Board of Directors shall be paid by cheque signed by any two of the following Officers: The President, the immediate Past President, the Vice Presidents, and the Treasurer.

The Treasurer shall maintain regular books of account and complete records of all monies received and disbursed by the Association and shall be responsible for the preparation of all financial statements of the affairs of the Association.

All monies received from patrons, bequests or contributions shall be credited to the funds of the Association. Any surplus funds may be invested by the Treasurer in such a manner as may be approved by the Board of Directors.

Members of the Association shall, at each General Meeting, be entitled to an account of the receipts and disbursements incurred during the preceding month.

4.2.8

Term of Office

Each Member of the Board of Directors elected at the Annual Election Meeting shall hold office from January 1st to December 31st. Outgoing Directors shall be eligible for re-election, if otherwise qualified.

The President may hold only that Office, and other Directors may hold no more than three (3) offices.

4.2.9

Vacancies

Vacancies on the Board of Directors, however caused, may, so long as a quorum of Directors remain in office, be filled by:

- Appointment by the Directors from among the qualified Members of the Association, or
- Vacancies shall be filled if possible at the next Annual Election Meeting of the Association.
- Or abolished if obsolete or redundant

4.2.10

Termination

A Member of the Board of Directors shall cease to be a Member at the time he/she ceases to be a Member of the Association.

4.3

Board Committees



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

4.3.1

Establishing Committees

The Board may appoint Committees to advise the Board.

4.3.2

General Procedures for Committees

4.3.2.1

A Board Member chairs each Committee created by the Board.

4.3.2.2

The Chairperson Calls Committee Meetings.

Each Committee:

- a) Records Minutes of its Meetings
- b) Distributes these Meeting Minutes to the Committee Members, and
- c) Provides reports to each Board Meeting if the Board requests.

4.3.2.3

A majority of the Committee Members present at a meeting is a quorum.

4.3.2.4

Each Member of the Committee including the Chairperson has one (1) vote at the committee meeting.

4.4

Standing Committees

The Board establishes these Standing Committees:

- Finance Committee
- Nomination Committee

4.4.1

The Finance Committee

- a) consists of the Treasurer, who is the Chairperson, and the Financial Advisor appointed by the Board
- b) is responsible for:
 - Recommending budget policies to the Board
 - Recommending policies on disbursing and investing funds to the Board
 - Establishing policies for Board and Committee expenditures
 - Arranging audits of the books
 - Reporting on the year's financial activities at the Annual Financial Meeting, and

4.4.2

The Nomination and Awards Committee

- a) Consists of the Immediate Past President or a Board of Directors appointee who chairs the Committee, and two (2) other Members appointed by the Board three months in advance of the Annual Elections Meeting, and
- b) is responsible for:
 - Soliciting nominations for all positions, except the Past President, and
 - Conducting the actual election.
 - Collect nominations for the Awards of the Association and provide a list of all the nominees and their recommendations.

Article 5

Finance and Other Management Matters



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

5.1 **The Registered Address**

The Registered Address of the Association is located in Sherwood Park.

5.2 **Finance and Auditing**

5.2.1 The Fiscal Year ends on December 31 each year.

5.2.2 **Financial Audits**

All books and accounts of the Association shall be audited yearly by a duly qualified accountant, or by two (2) members of the Association who do not have signing authority, appointed for the purpose and a Financial Statement shall be made available to the Treasurer prior to March 31 of the year following the year under review. The Treasurer shall present the Financial Statement to the membership at the Annual Financial Meeting of the Association.

The Board of Directors may arrange for a duly qualified Auditor to perform an audit of the Association's books as may be required.

5.3 **Seal of the Association**

5.3.1 **Custody and Use of the Seal**

There shall be a Common Seal of the Association which shall be affixed by the Secretary, to all contracts or other written documents or instruments to which the Seal of the Association is required to be affixed, under signatures of such Officers of the Association as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors. The Common Seal of the Association shall be in the custody of the Secretary.

5.4 **Inspection of the Books and Records of the Association**

5.4.1 The books and records of the Association may be inspected by any member upon receipt of a written request for such an inspection by the Secretary or by such other Officers of the Association whose records are concerned in the inspection request, not later than two (2) weeks prior to the proposed inspection date. The books and records of the Association will be made available for inspection at a General Meeting upon request.

The Annual Financial and Operating Report shall made available upon request of the membership.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

5.5 **Borrowing Powers**

5.5.1 The Board of Directors may:

- Borrow money on the credit of the Association, and
- Issue, sell, or pledge security to the Association, or
- Charge, mortgage, or hypothecate or pledge all or any of the real or material property of the Association, including rights, powers, franchise, undertakings and book debts to secure any security or any money borrowed or debts or any other obligation or liability of the Association.

5.5.2 **Debentures**

For the purpose of carrying out the objectives of the Association, the Board of Directors may borrow or raise or secure the payment of money in such manner as they see fit, being limited only by Bylaws of the Association, or by law. No debenture shall be issued except by a Special Resolution of the Association.

5.6 **Remuneration**

5.6.1 No Director or other Member of the Association shall receive any remuneration for the execution of duties as a Member or Director of the Association.

5.6.2 **Payment of Expenses**

Payments to Directors or other Members of the Association for expenses incurred in the ordinary routine operation of the Association's business may be made in accordance with procedures established by the Board of Directors.

5.6.3 **Conflict of Interest**

To avoid conflict of interest, no Board Member will be eligible to bid or be awarded Association contracts. Unless otherwise approved by the Board of Directors and the involved party shall abstain from voting.

5.7 **Protection and Indemnities of Directors and Officers**

5.7.1 Each Director or Officer holds office with protection from the Association. The Association indemnifies each Director or Officer against all costs or charges that result from any act done in his/her role for the Association. The Association does not protect any Director or Officer for acts of fraud, dishonesty, or bad faith.

5.7.2 No Director or Officer is liable for the acts of other Directors, Officers or employees. No Director or Officer is responsible for any loss or damage due to bankruptcy, insolvency, or wrongful act of any person, firm or corporation dealing with the Association. No Director or Officer is liable for any loss due to an oversight or error in judgment, or by an act in his/her role for the Association, unless the act is fraud, dishonesty or bad faith.



Sherwood Park Fish and Game Association Bylaws

Article 6

Amending the Bylaws

The Bylaws of the Association shall be made, altered and rescinded only by a special resolution.

Article 7

Assets of the Association

7.1

Acquisition of Fixed and General Assets

The Board of Directors shall establish and approve procedures for the acquisition of all fixed and general assets to be acquired by the Association.

7.2

Inventory of Fixed and General Assets

The Treasurer shall ensure that an inventory of all fixed, current and general assets of the Association is completed at the close of the fiscal year and shall provide a report to the Board at the February Meeting of the Board. All Members of the Association controlling and having custody of accountable assets shall provide the Treasurer with a complete inventory of assets under their control or return such assets to the Treasurer by the January Board Meeting or immediately following any time, they relinquish control and custody of such assets.

7.3

Disposal of Property

The Association will give notice to the membership of all property to be disposed of, other than real property. Such property shall be given a reserve price by the decision of the majority of the Board of Directors and shall be sold to the highest bidder.

7.4

The Association shall hold all property, income arising therefrom, acquired by possession, gift, and bequest or otherwise solely for the objectives and purposes for which the Association is incorporated.

Article 8

Newsletter

8.1

The Association shall publish a Newsletter from time to time for distribution to the Members of the Association. Notice of the Association's Meetings published therein shall be deemed properly constituted notice of meetings, subject to the Bylaws Herein Article 3.

Article 9

General

9.1

In all matters not governed by these Bylaws, procedures shall be in accordance with the current Robert's Rules of Order

Article 10

Dissolution

Should the association disband at any time in the future all assets, after payments of all debts, shall be donated to the Alberta Fish and Game Association.